TERMINATIONS OF INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF MEMBERS

Effective on dates indicated

Lawrence R. Bigongiari, Assistant Professor of Radiology, December 10, 1976
Francisco D. Galiana, Assistant Professor of Electrical and Computer Engineering, December 31, 1976
Janet L. Hanger, Instructor in Nursing, December 31, 1976
John M. Haschke, Assistant Professor of Chemistry, December 31, 1976
Paul H. Jess, Assistant Professor of Journalism, June 30, 1976
James W. Knowles, Associate Professor of Dentistry, December 31, 1976
Gilbert A. Maddox, Assistant Professor of Journalism, June 30, 1976
Marilyn J. Medaugh, Lecturer in Community Health Programs, December 31, 1976
Russell K. Raney, Adjunct Associate Professor of Electrical and Computer Engineering, April 30, 1976
Richard W. Sundling, Instructor in Anesthesiology, November 21, 1976
Clyde W. Wilcox, Jr., Instructor in Radiology, December 31, 1976

Two leaves of absence without salary, two medical leaves, and one retirement furlough were reported to the Regents.

VI. RETIREMENT MEMOIRS

Secretary Kennedy reported the retirement of two faculty members. The following memoirs were adopted:

Dr. F. GAYNOR EVANS, Professor of Anatomy, will retire from active faculty status as of December 31, 1976, after a most productive career as a teacher and researcher.

A native of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, Dr. Evans took undergraduate studies at Coe College before entering the graduate program at Columbia University, New York City, where he received his Ph.D. degree in 1939.

From 1938 through 1941, Dr. Evans held an appointment as Instructor in zoology and anatomy at Columbia University. Dr. Evans served as instructor in zoology at Duke University 1941–43, and as assistant professor of anatomy at the University of Maryland 1943–45. In 1945, he joined the Wayne State University faculty as assistant professor of anatomy, and remained there until 1959. During this time he was promoted to associate and then professor at Wayne State.

In 1959, Dr. Evans was named to his professorship of anatomy at The University of Michigan where he has been for the past 17 years. He contributed strength and vitality to both instructional and research programs of the Department of Anatomy. His major teaching responsibility was in gross anatomy.

It was his imagination and persistent research efforts in relation to the influence of stress on bone function which made him a world renowned authority on the mechanics of bone fractures and the tensile strength of bones. He received many invitations to work in other countries. He spent one year in Sweden, and participated in numerous international meetings throughout the world. The author of several monographs, Dr. Evans has also been very active in editorial work for several scientific journals.

The Regents now salute this distinguished health educator for his dedicated service by naming him Professor Emeritus of Anatomy.

WILLIAM W. BISHOP, JR., Edwin DeWitt Dickinson Professor of Law, is retiring from active faculty status as of December 31, 1976, after a dedicated career of teaching and research.
Professor Bishop was born in Princeton, New Jersey, in 1906. He received both his A.B. (1928) and his J.D. (1931) from The University of Michigan. He was a research and teaching assistant at the Law School from 1931 to 1935. Following a year with a major New York City law firm, he was a lecturer in politics at Princeton in 1936–1938. Then, after a year of graduate studies at Columbia, he was Assistant Legal Advisor in the State Department during the critical period of 1939–1947.

Professor Bishop began teaching as a Visiting Professor of Law at Pennsylvania in 1947, and at Columbia in 1948. He moved to Michigan in 1948, where he has been Professor of Law ever since. In 1965 he was honored with a Distinguished Faculty Achievement Award, and in 1966 he was named to a Distinguished University Professorship.

Professor Bishop is a member and Honorary Vice-President of the American Society of International Law, and a member of the Board of Editors of the American Journal of International Law. He was Editor-in-Chief of the Journal in 1953–1955 and 1962–1970. He was appointed to the important Permanent Court of Arbitration of the International Court of Justice in 1975. Although Professor Bishop has written many influential articles, he will probably be best remembered as a scholar for his highly successful and widely used casebook, International Law Cases and Materials, first published in 1949 and often revised. He has also presented two major series of lectures at the Hague Academy of International Law. His specialties include the law of the sea and the difficult concept of international jurisdiction.

Professor Bishop, a naturally reserved and quiet man, has endeared himself to generations of students by his constant accessibility, unfailing sympathy, and warm encouragement. His legacy is a devoted band of international lawyers, American and foreign, sprinkled all over the globe.

The Regents now salute this accomplished lawyer and educator for his long service to The University of Michigan by naming him Professor Emeritus of Law.

VII. DEATHS

Secretary Kennedy reported to the Regents the deaths of Edwin L. Cohen, Professor of Internal Medicine and Director of the Metabolism Research Unit, and Alexander Eckstein, Professor of Economics. The following memorial statements were adopted:

The Regents of the University express their deep sorrow at the loss of Dr. EDWIN L. COHEN, Professor of Internal Medicine and Director of the Metabolism Research Unit, who died Tuesday, November 30, at the age of 45.

He was born in Pittsburgh in 1931. He received his A.B. degree from the University of Chicago in 1952 and his M.D. degree from Northwestern University in 1956. He served his internship in the Hospital of the University of Pennsylvania. He came to The University of Michigan in July of 1957 as an assistant resident and completed three years of residency in Internal Medicine. After two years of service in the Air Force, he returned in 1962 for fellowship training in Endocrinology and Metabolism. He was appointed an Instructor in Medicine in 1964, Assistant Professor of Internal Medicine in 1966, and Associate Professor of Internal Medicine in 1969.

Dr. Cohen participated fully in the teaching responsibility of the Department of Internal Medicine and the Division of Endocrinology and Metabolism. He also served as Chief of Clinic in the General Medicine Outpatient Department. He had major teaching responsibilities for fourth year students, residents, and for trainees during their assignments to the